

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ
HALLA NA CATHRACH
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL
CITY HALL
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., I SEOMRA NA COMHAIRLE, HALLA NA CATHRACH, CORCAIGH** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, CORK** for the transaction of the following business:-

GNÁTHCHRUINIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 14^ú DEIREADH FÓMHAIR 2019

ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 14th OCTOBER 2019

1. Votes of Sympathy.
2. Votes of Congratulations/Best Wishes.
3. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

4. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

To consider any items the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

5. **MINUTES**

To consider, and if so decided to approve as correct record and sign Minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held 9th September 2019.
- Ordinary Meeting (LPT) of An Chomhairle held 26th September 2019.
- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held 30th September 2019.

6. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

7. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: MONASTERY ROAD, ROCHESTOWN CORK – CIRCLE VOLUNTARY HOUSING CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Circle Voluntary Housing CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 2, Abbotswood, Monastery Road, Rochestown, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €296,700 be granted to Circle Voluntary Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 3 bed unit of accommodation at 2 Abbotswood Mews, Monastery Road, Rochestown, Cork”.

8. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: MOUNT OVAL VILLAGE, ROCHESTOWN, CORK – CORK SIMON COMMUNITY CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Cork Simon Community CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 35 Granary Hall, Mount Oval Village, Rochestown, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €209,000 be granted to Cork Simon Community CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 2 bed apartment at 35 Granary Hall, Mount Oval Village, Rochestown, Cork”.

9. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: 18, HANOVER MEWS, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 18, Hanover Mews, Hanover Street, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €213,900 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 2 bed apartment at 18 Hanover Mews, Hanover Street, Cork”.

10. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: 19, HANOVER MEWS, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 19, Hanover Mews, Hanover Street, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €217,250 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 2 bedroom apartment at 19 Hanover Mews, Hanover Street, Cork”.

11. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: LEE ROAD, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one unit of accommodation at 3 Lee Vista, Lee Road, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €204,100 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one 2 bed apartment at 3 Lee Vista, Lee Road, Cork”.

12. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: EDEL HOUSE, GRATTAN STREET, CORK – GOOD SHEPHERD CORK CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 19th September, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Good Shepherd Cork CLG in respect of the provision and refurbishment of accommodation at Edel House, Grattan Street, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €7,537,428.70 (previously approved €5,595,568.50) be granted to Good Shepherd Cork CLG subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme in respect of the provision and refurbishment of accommodation at Edel House, Grattan Street, Cork”.

13. **COMMUNITY MAINTENANCE GRANTS SCHEME 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Services, Operations Directorate dated 12th September, 2019 on the Community Maintenance Grants Scheme 2019.

14. **SWITCH ON OF THE CHRISTMAS LIGHTS 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Chief Executive, dated 10th October 2019 on the proposed holding of an event by Cork City Council under the Planning and Development Act, 2000 and Planning and Development Regulations 2001. The event is the Switch On Of The Christmas Lights 2019.

15. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meetings held on

- Ordinary Meeting of 17th September, 2019
- Special Meeting of 23rd September, 2019
- Ordinary Meeting of 7th October 2019

15.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO 31st AUGUST 2019**

J. Hallahan presented the Financial Statements to 31st August 2019.

Decision of Group

It was agreed to refer the Financial Statements to 31st August 2019 to An Chomhairle for consideration.

15.2 **CORK CITY COUNCIL'S BANK OVERDRAFT FACILITY Y/E DECEMBER 2020**

Members considered the report of the Head of Finance, dated 1st October 2019, on the Bank Overdraft Facility Y/E December 2020.

Decision of the Group

Members approved the report and agreed to refer the following resolution to An Chomhairle for adoption:

“That Cork City Council approves, pursuant to Section 106 of the Local Government Act, 2001, an overdraft facility of €25m (twenty five million euro) for the twelve month period to 31st December 2020”.

16. **PARTY WHIPS AND PARTY LEADERS – 30th SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Party Whips and Party Leaders from its meeting held 30th September 2019.

17. **INTERIM ENVIRONMENT, WATER AND AMENITY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 16th SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Interim Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee from its meeting held 16th September 2019.

18. **INTERIM COMMUNITY, CULTURE AND PLACEMAKING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 16th SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Interim Community, Culture and Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee from its meeting held 16th September 2019.

19. **INTERIM INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS AND TOURISM STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 16th SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Interim International Relations and Tourism Strategic Policy Committee from its meeting held 16th September 2019.

20. **FINANCE AND ESTIMATES COMMITTEE**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance and Estimates Committee from its meetings held 3rd September, 2019 and 4th September, 2019.

21. **CLIMATE ACTION COMMITTEE – 23rd SEPTEMBER, 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Climate Action Committee from its meeting of 23rd September, 2019.

22. **SOUTH-CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 23rd SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South-Central Local Area Committee from its meeting held 23rd September 2019.

23. **SOUTH-WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 23rd SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South-West Local Area Committee from its meeting held 23rd September 2019.

24. **NORTH-EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 23rd SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North-East Local Area Committee from its meeting held 23rd September 2019.

25. **NORTH-WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 23rd SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North-West Local Area Committee from its meeting held 23rd September 2019.

26. **SOUTH-EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 24th SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South-East Local Area Committee, from its meeting held 24th September 2019.

27. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

28. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

29. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

30. **PLAN MAKING – BEST PRACTICE AND EMERGING TRENDS CONFERENCE**

An Chomhairle to approve the attendance of Comhairleoir D. Boyle at the Plan Making – Best Practice And Emerging Trends Conference held at the Grand Hotel, Malahide on the 4th October 2019.

31. **ICSH BIENNIAL NATIONAL SOCIAL HOUSING CONFERENCE 2019**

An Chomhairle to approve the attendance of Comhairleoir D. Boyle at the ICSH Biennial National Social Housing Conference 2019 held at the Clayton Whites Hotel, Wexford from the 10th to 11th October 2019.

32. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

33. **CHIEF EXECUTIVES MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive’s monthly management report for August 2019.

34. **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees.

35. **MOTIONS**

35.1 **FUNDING FOR CONSTRUCTION OF CYCLE LINK FROM GRANGE ROAD TO TRAMORE VALLEY PARK**

‘That Cork City Council recommend to the National Transport Authority and to Transport Infrastructure Ireland that the planned pedestrian and cycle link from the Grange Road through the Vernon Mount Valley and over the South Ring Road to Tramore Valley Park be given priority in terms of funding to proceed to tender and construction in 2020 and 2021.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/391)

35.2 **ACCESS TO DISABLED PARKING SPOTS**

‘That Cork City Council will write to the Minister for Transport to ask that a review of legislation governing access to disabled parking spots via designated lanes take place as soon as possible. An example of issues with current legislation being access to disabled parking spots on Patrick Street.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/416)

35.3 **REVERSE CUTS TO REHABILITATIVE TRAINING ALLOWANCE FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES**

‘That Cork City Council supports #AllowUsLearn campaign to reverse cuts to the rehabilitative training allowance for people with disabilities returning to education and call on the government to reverse same.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/439)

35.4 **THE GOVERNMENT TO BRING PRESSURE ON THE EUROPEAN UNION**

‘That Cork City Council calls on the government to bring pressure on the European Union to call on Turkey for an immediate withdrawal of its forces from Northern Syria and to refrain from attacking the Syrian Democratic Forces (the SDF) who were to the fore in defeating Islamic State (ISIS)’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/440)

35.5 **IMPROVED 203 BUS SERVICE FOR COMMUNITY**

‘That Cork City Council would organise a meeting with Bus Eireann to discuss the ongoing problems with the 203 bus service to see what can be done to alleviate the pinch points and look for an improved service for the community.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/437)

APPENDIX 1

MOTIONS

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee.

1. **WEED ERADICATION PROGRAMME**

‘That the laneway between Greenlawn and Slieve Mish Park be included in the weed eradication programme and a general clean up.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/146)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

2. **YELLOW BOX JUNCTION AT FRONT DOUGLAS ROAD/CROSS DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council reinstate the yellow box junction at Front Douglas Road/Cross Douglas Road intersection and repaint the white stop lines as they are faded and a danger to the safety of pedestrians especially coming out of town.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/151)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

3. **YELLOW BOX JUNCTION AT SOUTH DOUGLAS ROAD**

‘Install a yellow box junction at the intersection of Heatherton and the South Douglas Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/390)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

4. **INCLUDE GREENHILLS ESTATE IN THE ROAD RESURFACING PROGRAMME**

‘That Greenhills Estate especially at the t-junction be included in the estate road resurfacing programme. That an immediate investigation be taken into the condition of the footpath and the pot holes in the same estate.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/156)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

5. **TRAFFIC CALMING/ESTATE AND CHILDREN AT PLAY SIGNS AT THE MEADOWS KNOCKNACULLEN**

‘That Cork City Council ensure under the development and construction of the new houses at the Meadows Knocknacullen put in place, traffic calming measures, estate signs, children at play signs and weed and grass cutting programme as a matter of urgency.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/201)

North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

6. **DISABILITY STICKER AT KILKIERAN CLOSE**

‘That Cork City Council Paint the disabled parking bay and white lines in Kilkieran Close.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/202)

North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

7. **RESURFACE SQUARE IN LANDSDOWNE PARK**

‘That Cork City Council resurface the square in Landsdowne Park, Old Youghal Road as a matter of safety to the children in the area, considering the trips falls and injuries that have occurred in this square.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/206)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

8. **ADDITIONAL LIGHTS IN THORNDALE ESTATE, DUBLIN HILL**

‘That Cork City Council put in place three additional lights at the back of 111-119 Thorndale Estate, Dublin Hill, in the interest of health, safety and security.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/207)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

9. **FLOODING ASSESSMENT AT BALLYVOLANE AMENITY PARK**

‘That Cork City Council carry out an independent flooding assessment report and a risk assessment of the amenity park of Ballyvolane.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/208)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

10. **RE-ZONE ELLIS'S YARD**

‘That Cork City Council re zone Ellis’s Yard for community and sporting activity, effective immediately.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/225)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

11. **ADDITIONAL GULLIES AT JUNCTION OF SUNDAY’S WELL ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council place additional gulleys at the junction of Sundays Well Road to take the rain from Shanakiel Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/239)

North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

12. **REINSTATE FOOTPATH AT RATHPEACON BRIDGE**

‘That Cork City Council re-instate the footpath from the Rathpeacon Bridge/Country Squire Pub to the Farm Power junction along the Old Mallow Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/262)

North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

13. **TREE TRIMMING AT IONA PLACE AND IONA GREEN, MAYFIELD**

‘That Cork City Council carry out a tree trimming programme on the green areas in Iona Place, Iona Green in Mayfield, these trees are overgrown and preventing natural light into people’s homes.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/267)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

14. **SPEED SIGN ON HAZELWOOD ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council would get the solar powered flashing speed sign on the main Hazelwood Road operational on health and safety grounds.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/268)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

15. **SPEED RAMP AT OAKFIELD ESTATE, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council install one speed ramp on the main artery road within the Oakfield Estate in Glanmire on health and safety grounds.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/269)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

16. **SPEED RAMPS AT ELM GROVE ESTATE, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council would install speed ramps in the Elm Grove Estate, Sallybrook, Glanmire on health and safety grounds.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/270)

North East Local Area Committee– 23/09/19

17. **NEW PLACE NAME SIGNS AT MAYFIELD**

‘That Cork City Council erect two new place name Signs with the message of ‘Welcome to Mayfield ‘in place of the existing signs that resemble concrete headstones on the Northern Ring Road outside Mayfield Garda Station and the other one at the junction of Ballyhooly Road and the Northern Ring Road. I also ask that the existing stone signs be removed and replaced by the new place name signs.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/341)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

18. **UPDATED LOCAL AREA PLAN FOR MAYFIELD**

‘That Cork City Council would undertake the formulation of an updated Local Area Plan for the greater Mayfield area. Given the growth in population, the extended City boundary and increasing traffic flow through the area it is critically important that an updated Local Area Plan for the greater Mayfield Area is formulated and implemented as soon as possible.

Some Key areas of importance, amongst many more, would be;

- The re-generation of the Roseville Estate in Mayfield. These are old estates and are in urgent need of upgrading, infrastructure between estates needs to be reviewed, waste land in these estates need to be used for a positive purpose or alternatively built on as these areas are being used for ongoing rubbish dumping or anti social behaviour.
- Derelict properties and sites across the Community to be identified, refurbished and returned to use.
- In the interest of public safety, the new LAP should review the roads infrastructure, traffic flow and traffic management in the greater Mayfield area.

- The identification and development of, sporting and recreational facilities in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr J. Kavanagh 19/345)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

19. **REGENERATION OF NORTH MAIN STREET**

‘That Cork City Council would put in place a Strategic Plan for the regeneration and development of North Main Street and surrounding areas enhancing the commercial offer, retaining the historical heritage of the area and enhancing the areas attractiveness as a place to live.’

(Proposer: Cllr J. Kavanagh 19/350)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

20. **FOOTPATH RENEWAL AT SILVERHEIGHTS**

‘That the footpaths in Silverheights Avenue, Silverheights Drive and Silverheights Road be assessed and added to the footpath renewal programme for 2019.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/370)

North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

21. **CUL DE SAC SIGN AT STOCKTON CLOSE, GRANGE**

‘That a cul-de-sac sign be erected at Stockton Close, Grange.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 19/387)

South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19

22. **MORE PUBLIC BIKE RACKS**

‘That Cork City Council provide more public bike racks to enable cyclists to lock their bicycles at more locations in the City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/388)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19

23. **TREE TRIMMING AT MARYBOROUGH**

‘That the overgrown trees adjacent to Maryborough House Hotel are cut back as the traffic lights at that junction are being obscured by same. The traffic lights are hidden from view as you come down the hill from the Maryborough side and was the site of a recent traffic incident.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 19/389)

South East Local Area Committee – 24/09/19

24. **AUDIO FEEDBACK AT PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS IN BALLYVOLANE AND MAYFIELD**

‘That improvements be made to the audio feedback from crossing signals located at the following key pedestrian crossings in Ballyvolane and Mayfield.

- * North Ring Road / Balleyhooly Road.
- * North Ring Road / Colmcille Avenue close to Mayfield Garda Station.
- * Pedestrian light outside Our Lady Crowned Credit Union.
- * Tinkers Cross junction with Old Youghal Road and North Ring Road.

Some of the crossing signals completely lack any audible feedback, and others provide audio of an insufficient volume, and as such present a danger to visually impaired pedestrians at these busy junctions.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 19/398)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

25. **WIDENING OF FOOTPATH AT THE NORTH RING ROAD**

‘In reference to my previous motion calling for the widening of the footpath on the Southside of the North Ring Road running from Tinkers Cross to Ballyhooley Road junction, I recommend that works commence urgently on the footpath, as it is currently preventing guide dog assisted pedestrians from using the pathway.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 19/399)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

26. **REPAIR OF ROOF AND STRUCTURE AT THE BUTTER MARKET, SHANDON**

‘In view of the deteriorating condition of the historic and architecturally important former Butter Market building at Shandon, that Cork City Council would as a matter of urgency accelerate the process of repairing the roof and other parts of the structure with a view to use for community/heritage purposes within the next 12 months’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 19/400)

North West Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

27. **INTRODUCTION OF DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTION REBATE SCHEME FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT**

‘That Cork City Council would immediately introduce a development contribution rebate scheme for residential development, which mirrors the current waiver scheme available to commercial developments. We are calling for this rebate to be applied to all schemes with an existing permission, but not yet commenced and all future permissions, in order to assist in the construction of housing targets for the City.’

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Cahill, Cllr. J. Kavanagh, Cllr. D. Forde, Cllr. S. O’Callaghan, Cllr. G. Kelleher, Cllr. D. Boylan 19/401)

Community, Culture and Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/19

28. **BUS STOP AT THE JUNCTION OF DONNYBROOK HILL AND CHURCH ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council, in conjunction with Córas Iompair Éireann and Bus Éireann, move the bus stop (which is currently located beside the traffic lights at the junction of Donnybrook Hill and Church Road) a few metres up Donnybrook Hill and away from the traffic lights. Such a move would enable motorists to temporarily cross into the other lane of traffic, go around any bus stopped at said bus stop and proceed through the traffic lights to Douglas West. This, in turn, would go a long way towards easing traffic congestion on Donnybrook Hill.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/402)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

29. **ESTABLISH A POSITION OF SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT OFFICER**

‘That this City Council establish a position of Sustainable Transport Officer to better inform policy decisions, and encourage enforcement of existing policies, in the areas of public transport, cycling and walking.’

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. L. Bogue 19/403)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19

30. **EXTEND THE BIKE SHARE SCHEME**

‘That any extension of this City's Bike Share scheme include stations at Douglas Street, Turners Cross, Ballyphehane and The Lough.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/404)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee - 21/10/19

31. **GREENROOF BUS STOPS**

‘That this Council seek to replicate the example of the city of Utrecht in The Netherlands which has greenroofed its bus stops as an exercise in bettering biodiversity.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/405)

Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/19

32. **EXPENDITURE CODES FOR BUS AND CYCLE LANES**

‘That dedicated expenditure codes for this Council's budgetary process be created for annual expenditure on bus lanes and on cycle lanes.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/406)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee - 21/10/19

33. **BUS SHELTER OUTSIDE MARYBOROUGH RIDGE**

‘That the Council give an update in relation to the installation of a bus shelter outside Maryborough Ridge. This was previously requested from Cork Co. Co. and apparently a request had been made to TII for funding which would facilitate the project.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 19/407)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

34. **SAFETY AUDIT FROM MARYBOROUGH RIDGE TO MARYBOROUGH HILL**

‘That the Council do a safety audit of the lower exit from Maryborough Ridge onto Maryborough Hill as residents have complained about lack of sight lines at same.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 19/408)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

35. **REPLACE FENCING AT ARDCULLEN EST., HOLLYHILL**

‘That Cork City Council would replace fencing at the left side entrance to ArdculLEN Est., Hollyhill with well appointed bollards which could protect the green area. The green area could then be developed as an amenity linked to the area around the nearby reservoir, earmarked for development as amenity under the Regeneration Masterplan, by a pedestrian crossing.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/409)

North West Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

36. **GREEN AREA REINSTATED AT GLASHEEN ROAD**

‘That the junction of Hartlands Ave. and Glasheen Road would have the green area reinstated.’

(Proposer: C. Finn 19/410)

South West Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

37. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES ON MAGAZINE ROAD**

‘That traffic calming measures would be implemented on Magazine Road particularly at the section between Dorgan's Road and Coolgarten Park.’

(Proposer: C. Finn 19/411)

South West Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

38. **LIGHT UP CITY HALL**

‘That Cork City Council would support the request from the Border Communities Against Brexit to light up the City Hall in yellow (colours of the B.C.A.B) on the 16th of October which is the eve of the meeting of the European Council to discuss whether Britain will leave the European Union with or without an agreement.’

(Proposers: Cllr. H. Cremin, Cllr. F. Kerins 19/412)

Corporate Policy Group – 07/10/19

39. **RESIDENTIAL PERMIT PARKING IN THE VICINITY OF THE DOCKLANDS**

‘That, in order to prevent unwanted on-street parking in the vicinity of city and docklands developments with reduced or no parking provision, Cork City Council will (a) introduce residential permit parking for pre-existing residents on streets in the vicinity of these developments and (b) require the developer/management company of these developments to make contributions towards the implementation and on-going costs of the enforcement of parking regulations in the vicinity of these developments.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/413)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee - 21/10/19

40. **MOBILITY HUB IN GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council will identify a location in Glanmire suitable for a small scale mobility hub near a well serviced bus stop, allowing for car and bike parking, and providing high quality bus shelters, in order to facilitate modal shift between walking, car, bike and public transport.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/414)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

41. **INSTALL CYCLE WHEELING RAMPS AT PATRICK’S HILL AND CLIFTON TCE**

‘That Cork City Council will install cycle wheeling ramps on (a) the steps at Patrick's Hill between Bridge Street and Wellington Road in order to promote use of Wellington Road as a cycle quietway and (b) the pedestrian steps connecting Clifton Terrace and the Lower Glanmire Road in order to improve uphill cycle connectivity between the Kent Station and the St Luke's area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/415)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

42. **RENAME ANGLESEA STREET**

‘That Cork City Council, as part of events marking the centenaries of our patriot dead in 2020, rename Anglesea Street 'Terence MacSwiney Street' , all Cllrs may have received this proposal from an interested member of the public.’

(Proposers: Cllr. H. Cremin, Cllr. K. Collins 19/422)

Party Whips – 29/10/19

43. **CASTLE MEADOWS, SKEHARD ROAD**

‘That CCC immediately act on promises made to the residents of Castle Meadows and Councillors without any further delay.

Firstly, to address the parking issues at the entrance of the park which are making the turn very dangerous, while following through with adequate signage and lining in the park.

Secondly, address the pedestrian access on the eastern side of the park i.e. the river side.

Lastly, the pressing issue of anti social behaviour around the playground area. Nightly fires are now a reality with the fire brigade service in attendance on at least five times recently. The solution, address the inadequate fence which is enabling the anti social behaviour, introduce better lighting and cameras.

The excuse of not taking in charge is not good enough.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Cahill 19/424)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

44. **ERECT GUARD RAIL BARRIER AT BALLINLOUGH COMMUNITY PARK**

‘That a guard rail barrier be erected between the gate and the road outside Ballinlough Community Park on Boreenmanna Road. The gate leads directly on to the Boreenmanna Road and there is no pedestrian guard rail / safety barrier to stop small children running straight onto the road if somebody left the gate open.’

(Proposer: Cllr Kieran McCarthy 19/426)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

45. **CLOSE OF PART OF THE MARINA ON SUNDAY AFTERNOON**

‘As per previous motions by fellow colleagues in the South East LEA, and building upon their previous calls, that the process to close part of the Marina on Sunday afternoons be expediated.’

(Proposer: Cllr Kieran McCarthy 19/427)

South East Local Area Committee – 30/10/19

46. **CARRY OUT A PLEBISCITE AT GREENWOOD ESTATE, TOGHER**

‘That cork city council would carry out a plebiscite at Greenwood estate Togher to get the opinions of residents to the introduction of traffic calming measures in certain parts of this estate as residents are very concerned about the recent increase of speeding traffic and are really concerned for the young children and elderly residents that are living in this estate’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/428)

South West Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

47. **30km PER HOUR SIGNS AT ESTATES IN BALLYVOLANE**

‘That the following estates in Ballyvolane receive the 30km per hour signs - Kinvara, Meelick, Mervue, Meadow, Ashgrove, Park Court’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 19/432)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

48. **ADD ST. CHRISTOPHER’S ROAD TO ROAD RESURFACING PROGRAMME**

‘That St. Christopher's Road, Montenotte be added to the road resurfacing programme’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 19/433)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

49. **INSTALL TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES ON GLENHEIGHTS AND BALLINCOLLIE ROAD, BALLYVOLANE**

‘That traffic calming measures be installed on Glenheight's Road & Ballincolly Road, residents and local clubs are living in constant fear when crossing the road due to speeding in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 19/434)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

50. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT ST. LUKE’S/BALLYHOOLY ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council look at traffic calming measures in the St. Luke's/ Ballyhooly Road area. This was raised at a recent safety forum and the speeds and the residents of the area are very concerned with the speed of vehicles going through the village of St. Luke's and surrounding areas.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 19/435)

North East Local Area Committee - 29/10/19

52. **MARK HISTORY AND STORY OF ‘CORK DOCKERS’**

‘That Cork City Council would ensure that the history and story of Cork Dockers is marked and remembered in some way including inviting proposals from the public on same.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/438)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 18/11/19

53. **CCTV IN SHANDON AND DOMINIC STREET**

‘That Cork City Council would apply for funding from the Department Of Justice to have CCTV installed in Shandon & Dominic Street and Surrounding areas.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 17/316)

North West Local Area Committee – 29/10/19

54. **NEW LIGHTING AT SHANDON**

‘Can Cork City Council put in place new lighting at Shandon. The Shandon Steeple and particularly the clocks are iconic features on the City Scape of Cork City and we should look at highlighting this historic feature with lighting in order to ensure it be truly visible at night.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 18/039)

North West Local Area Committee – 29/10/19

CATHERINE KELLY
MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR

Chuíg gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

10^ú Deireadh Fómhair 2019